Public Document Pack



Your ref: Our ref:

Enquiries to: Rebecca Little

Email: Rebecca.Little@northumberland.gov.uk

Tel direct: 01670 622611

Date: Tuesday, 1 November 2022

Dear Sir or Madam,

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE) to be held in CONFERENCE ROOM 2, COUNTY HALL, MORPETH, NE61 2EF on WEDNESDAY, 9 NOVEMBER 2022 at 4.00 PM.

Yours faithfully

Rick O'Farrell

Interim Chief Executive

To Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) members as follows:-





AGENDA

PART I

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda will be dealt with in public.

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

Minutes of the meeting of the Northumberland Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE), Agreed Syllabus Conference, held on Wednesday, 6 July 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record, and signed by the chair.

3. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Unless already entered in the Council's Register of Members' interests, members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;

- a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest ('DPI') as set out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive function and is being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter.
- b. Which **directly relates to** the financial interest or well being of a Other Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain the room.
- c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is not DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare the interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of the public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the member must not take part in discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room.
- d. Which **affects** the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in the meeting.
- e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with it.

NB Any member needing clarification must contact monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Members are referred to the Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please refer to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter.

4. AN UPDATE OF CONTACTS WITH SCHOOLS AND TRAINING PROVISION

To receive an update from Caroline Weir, Part-time RE Consultant about the provision of RE in-service training and contacts with schools since the last related meeting.

5. SCHOOL WORKFORCE DATA

(Pages 7 - 8)

To receive and discuss the School Workforce Census data.

6. HOLOCAUST MEMORIAL DAY

For members to discuss.

7. ANALYSIS OF SACRE ANNUAL REPORTS 2020-2021 FOR THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STANDING COUNCILS ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (NASACRE)

(Pages 9 - 32)

For members to receive and discuss the analysis of SACRE annual reports 2020-2021.

8. NORTHUMBERLAND SACRE NEWSLETTER

Reminder of web site link: https://sway.office.com/IHUgZDzd2JS9kc1E

9. SACRE MEMBERSHIP UPDATE

An update to be provided by the Clerk on the recruitment of new members.

10. TRAINING AVAILABLE TO SACRE

(Pages 33 - 34)

For members to note training available and discuss completed training sessions.

11. NASACRE ISSUES

(Pages 35 - 40)

The NASACRE Newsletter

To receive the latest newsletter—for information.

Reminder of web site link: www.nasacre.org.uk for other interesting articles which Members may wish to view.

12. NORTHUMBERLAND SACRE ACTION PLAN SEPTEMBER 2021 - AUGUST 2023

(Pages 41 - 44)

To monitor the Northumberland SACRE Action Plan September 2021 – August 2023

13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education will be held on Wednesday, 1 February 2023 at 4:00 p.m.

14. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)

To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE:

- Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.
- Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.

Name:		Date of meeting:					
Meeting:							
Item to which your interest relates:							
Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):							
търрения и се сес	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
Are you intending	to withdraw from the meeting?	•	Yes - \square	No - 🗆			

Registering Interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in **Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)** which are as described in "The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012". You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in **Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests)**.

"Disclosable Pecuniary Interest" means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

- 1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.
- 2. A 'sensitive interest' is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation.
- 3. Where you have a 'sensitive interest' you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

- 4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in **Table 1**, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.
 - Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.
- 5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it.

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which *directly relates* to the financial interest or wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in **Table 2**), you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

- 7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which *directly relates* to your financial interest or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in **Table 1**) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.
- 8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects
 - a. your own financial interest or well-being;
 - b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or
 - c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set out in **Table 2** you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied
- 9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well-being:
 - a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
 - b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.

If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it.

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.

Subject	Description		
Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation	Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. [Any unpaid directorship.]		
Sponsorship	Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.		
Contracts	Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person is a director* or a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council		
	 (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and (b) which has not been fully discharged. 		
Land and Property	Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council. 'Land' excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy or to receive income.		
Licenses	Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer		
Corporate tenancies	Any tenancy where (to the councillor's knowledge)—		

	(a) the landlord is the council; and (b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of.		
Securities	Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where— (a) that body (to the councillor's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the council; and (b) either— i. the total nominal value of the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or ii. if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class		

- * 'director' includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society.
- * 'securities' means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect:

- a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority
- b) any body
 - i. exercising functions of a public nature
 - ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or
 - iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union)

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)

At the meeting of the **Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE)** held at Council Chamber, County Hall on Wednesday, 13 July 2022 at 4.00 pm.

PRESENT

D. Van-Der-Valde Vice-Chair, in the Chair.

COUNCILLORS

L. Bowman N. Morphet T. Thorne

TEACHER'S ASSOCIATIONS/UNIONS REPRESENTATIVES

R. Cant C. Curtis

T. Nicholls

CHURCH OF ENGLAND REPRESENTATIVES

C. Hudson P. Rusby

REPRESENTATIVES OF OTHER CHURCHES & FAITHS

Dr J. Miller

OBSERVERS

C. Dixon

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

D. Cookson Head of School Improvement
R. Little Assistant Democratic Services

Officer

C. Weir RE Consultant

Ch.'s Initials.....

1 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR

In the absence of Cllr G. Renner-Thompson (Chair), members of the SACRE committee were asked to take item 5 first in order that a vice-chair could be elected and take the Chair.

Councillor Thorne nominated D. Van der Velde, which was seconded by Councillor Bowman, this was agreed by the committee.

RESOLVED that D. Van Der Velde was elected as Vice-Chair.

D. Van Der Velde (Vice-chair), in the chair.

2 MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Membership and Terms of Reference for the Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE), as agreed at Full Council on 4 May 2022 were provided for information.

R. Little – SACRE Clerk, explained that emails had been sent to the National Bodies for various religions to find new SACRE members in February 2022 and follow up emails in June 2022, but there had been no responses.

RESOLVED that the information was noted.

3 ELECTION OF CHAIR

Dr J. Miller raised a point of order about the agenda stating "Election of Chair" when the committee do not elect the chair, with the chair being appointed by Full Council each year in May.

RESOLVED that the appointment of Councillor G Renner-Thompson as Chair was noted.

4 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND INTRODUCTIONS

Apologies were received from Councillor G. Renner-Thompson, A. Duffield, Rev. E.H. Marley and S. Dearlove.

5 MINUTES

C. Weir – RE Consultant, asked the committee if they would like to plan for Holocaust Memorial Day as the next meeting was planned for November 2022. D.

Ch.'s Initials.....

Page 2

Cookson explained that this was organised by Democratic Services and that he would ask for them to keep him informed so he could invite SACRE members.

Dr J. Miller asked whether S. Dearlove was a full member of SACRE and no longer a co-opted representative, it was confirmed that the decision was agreed by Full Council in May 2022.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Northumberland Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE), held on Wednesday, 2 February 2022 as circulated, were confirmed as a true record.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Northumberland Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE), Agreed Syllabus Conference, held on Wednesday, 6 April 2022 as circulated, were confirmed as a true record.

6 AN UPDATE OF CONTACTS WITH SCHOOLS AND TRAINING PROVISION

C. Weir – RE Consultant, explained that she had been focusing on the launch of the new syllabus with schools and she would go into further detail later on in the meeting.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

7 FEEDBACK ON THE AGREED SYLLABUS CONFERENCE LAUNCH

C. Weir – RE Consultant, explained to the committee that the launch day had been a success and she had spoken with schools who had the opportunity to look behind the scenes of the syllabus and also discussed with teachers the role of SACRE and they were invited to join the committee.

Key points in the syllabus were highlighted to schools along with teaching and learning approaches which would be utilised in the classrooms. First and primary schools were then separated from middle, and secondary schools to go into more details of the new syllabus and how to put it into practice and get the best out of it, including deep dives into subject leadership. RE Today brought along some resources for schools to buy into schemes of work for additional support. D. Cookson – Head of School Improvement and C. Weir – RE Consultant explained that they were looking into completing training on the new syllabus with schools in the Autumn term.

Feedback from teachers at the launch was positive, with comments including how well described the objectives were, how condensed the units were and how the syllabus looked more streamlined.

Almost 100 schools attended the launch day and were provided with a hard copy of the syllabus and schools which did not attend had been emailed and asked to collect a hard copy of the syllabus before the end of the term. D. Cookson explained that himself and C. Weir would support all schools who would like to attend, for the planning of the new syllabus for full successful implementation in September 2023.

Ch.'s Initials..... Page 3

D. Cookson – Head of School Improvement, explained that localised units had been discussed in Agreed Syllabus Conference meetings, however there had been insufficient committee members who attended the planned day to action this, but he would be happy to try again if committee members would attend.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

8 SCHOOL WORKFORCE DATA

Dr. J. Miller explained to the committee the background to the data, why and how it was collected and the role SACRE has on monitoring workforce data provided by secondary schools via the DFE. She did advise however, the data collected on the report was significantly out of date.

Committee members discussed the data briefly including; the percentage decrease of RE teaching hours in schools, and whether SACRE would investigate the schools that showed 0 hours or a decrease in hours.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

9 NASACRE ISSUES

A copy of Issue 31 was provided in the agenda packs for members to view, a further issue had been released since the publication of the agenda and had been circulated to members prior to the meeting.

The committee discussed Teaching School Hubs and suggested inviting R. Taylor to observe and partake in a future SACRE meeting.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

10 RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 2022 REPORT CARD

C. Weir – RE Consultant, introduced this report to the committee, explaining that it was released in May 2022 and showed information on Religious Education at a national level.

A small adjournment was announced to give members the opportunity to discuss the report in groups.

It was explained to members that Religious Education was not part of the national curriculum and the funding for the subject did not come from central government, but local authorities. Councillors of the committee were asked to speak to the Portfolio holder for Children's Services to lobby for further funding for Religious Education.

C. Weir – RE consultant, explained that "insufficient professional development for teachers of RE" and "Gaps in teacher subject knowledge" was something that she

Ch.'s Initials.....

would like to work with schools on in the next academic year, including a programme of training off the back of the Agreed Syllabus launch.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

11 REVIEW OF NASACRE CONFERENCE AND TRAINING EVENTS

A) C. Weir – RE Consultant, directed members to the report attached to the agenda item in their agendas and gave a brief overview of the report. It was noted that members were able to download a free version of the draft handbook on world views.

B)

C. Weir – RE Consultant explained that a number or training opportunities had been offered to SACRE members and that all members have been given the opportunity to attend. Verbal feedback from those training sessions from members were positive and helpful. Members were encouraged to attend further training sessions in September.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

12 **SACRE SUB-COMMITTEE**

- Dr. J. Miller explained that there had been three quorate meetings of the sub-committee, in which the viability of SACRE was discussed. A report had been prepared and added to the agenda, which members were given the opportunity to discuss the recommendations from the sub-committee for future SACRE meetings.
- D. Cookson Head of School Improvement, explained that item 5 on the recommendation list may depend on the policy of the council to allow hybrid meetings but would add an action on the action plan for the Chair of SACRE to investigate further.
- C. Curtis asked whether meetings could be on different days and times and noted that Wednesdays are not always viable for teaching staff.

Members thanked Dr. J. Miller for the report and unanimously agreed for the recommendations to be added to the SACRE action plan.

RESOLVED that this was agreed.

13 NORTHUMBERLAND SACRE ACTION PLAN SEPTEMBER 2021 TO AUGUST 2023

D. Cookson - Head of School Improvement, gave a verbal update on the SACRE Action Plan and explained that the recommendations from the sub-committee would become the plan for the next action plan.

Ch.'s Initials..... Page 5

RESOLVED that this was noted.

14 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Dr. J. Miller requested for the dates of the meeting to be provided further in advance and for the summer meeting to be brought forward to May as there was a long gap between the meeting in February and the meeting in July.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

15 **URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)**

C. Weir – RE Consultant explained that schools had approached her and asked whether members of faiths were able to visit and talk to schools about their world views to which: C. Hudson, Dr. J. Miller, P. Rusby and D. Van Der Velde volunteered. Cllr Morphet explained that he would also ask S. Dearlove following the meeting.

RESOLVED that this was noted.

CHAIR	 	
DATE	 	

School		Religious character	% year 7 hours - RE	% year 8 hours - RE	% year 9 hours - RE	% year 10 hours - RE	% year 11 hours - RE	% year 12 hours - RE	% year 13 hours - RE
Corbridge Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	4.47	م م 4.91	» 4 P	% 4	% <u>F</u>	% L	<u>% </u>
Seaton Sluice Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	3.95	3.95	•	•	•	•	•
Whytrig Community Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	5.56	0	•	•		•	•
Tweedmouth Community Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	7.32	0					<u> </u>
Glendale Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	2	1.5					<u> </u>
Berwick Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	3.57	3.33					
		, , ,	1 hr a	1 hr a					
Hexham Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	week	week					
Highfield Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	4.82	4.55					
Morpeth Chantry Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	2.95	3.71					
Morpeth Newminster Middle School	Middle	Does not apply	2.65	2.61					
D	Middle &								
Jame № alvert Spence College	Secondary	Does not apply	4	4	3	2	1	2	1
Hayd Bridge Community High School and Sports									
College	Secondary	Does not apply	2.66	3.92	1.95	5.77	0	6.03	0
The Duchess's Community High School	Secondary	Does not apply	2.21	3.36	3.52	1.92	0.93	2.8	2.13
Bede Academy	Secondary	Christian	6.91	6.83	7.07	8.6	8.46	5.56	6.42
		Church of							
NCEA Duke's Secondary School	Secondary	England	4.02	4.24	4.37	2.88	2.44	0	0
Cramlington Learning Village	Secondary	Does not apply	0	0	0	0.84	0.77	0	0
The Blyth Academy	Secondary	Does not apply	3	3	3	1	1		
Ashington Academy	Secondary	Does not apply	4.39	4.27	4.39	1.48	1.69	7.95	6 7
Bedlington Academy	Secondary	Does not apply	4.69	4.94	4.7	2.4	2.2	0	0 4-81
Ponteland High School	Secondary	Does not apply	5.11	5.36	5.32	5.02	5.8	4.51	4 .6 1
Astley Community High School	High	Does not apply			4.13	2.17	2.44	0	\overline{C}^{0}
Berwick Academy	High	Does not apply			1.7	1.7	1.7	2.11	<u> </u>
The King Edward VI Academy	High	None			4.56	5.04	1.41	2	2.23
Queen Elizabeth High School	High	Does not apply			3	1	1	0	2.23 D

This page is intentionally left blank





ANALYSIS OF SACRE ANNUAL REPORTS 2020-2021 FOR THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STANDING COUNCILS ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (NASACRE)

Report written by: Dr David Hampshire FRSA

Date: 15 May 2022



ANALYSIS OF SACRE ANNUAL REPORTS 2020-2021 FOR THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STANDING COUNCILS ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (NASACRE)

It is always a pleasure to add a foreword to publications of this kind – especially when then the analysis has been so rigorous, and the findings are so important. Thanks to our consultant, Dr David Hampshire, I am happy to recommend this report to NASACRE members and to the wider education community.

Every year, Standing Advisory Councils for RE are expected to submit a report of their activities to their own local authority, and from there to the Department for Education and the National Association of SACREs. NASACRE has provided a revised pro forma for this purpose https://nasacre.org.uk/resources/nasacre-support-materials/sacre-management/ and the database provides a snapshot of the work of the local bodies responsible for setting an RE curriculum through their Agreed Syllabus Conference, for monitoring this, for supporting teachers and schools as they implement the syllabus, and for determining the type of collective worship provided as part of the school day.

It is more than ten years since a summary analysis was provided by the government on a similar sample of SACRE reports. The responsibility for initiating a review was passed from the (former) Qualifications and Curriculum Authority to successive Departments of Education. NASACRE is delighted that the current DfE chose to help the association with the redesigned pro forma, and with the support of this 2022 analysis. It is an independent report, but its creation was supported by the DfE.

The report contains recommendations – these are mainly for NASACRE in relation to the association's partnership with SACRE's, local authorities and the Department for Education. SACREs work tirelessly, with extensive voluntary support, to achieve their aims and responsibilities. We thank all of those who submitted reports during this period, and who have engaged in the important provision of effective and affective religious education.

Foreword, from Linda Rudge, Chair of NASACRE





1 Executive Summary

- 1.1 SACREs continued to function during the second year of the pandemic. Some SACREs reported that they were inquorate for some of their meetings and not all SACREs were able to meet in person when restrictions were lifted. Some SACREs reported that there was an issue in terms of vacant places in some Groups and this led to a greater likelihood of inquorate meetings.
- 1.2 The resources made available to SACREs was variable and the Freedom of Information request from NASACRE featured in a number of reports. Some SACREs had clearly defined budgets, some stated that there was a commitment on the part of the LA to provide support as needed and at least one report stated that there was no support at all from the LA. The level of support had an impact on SACREs ability to perform their functions, especially monitoring RE and collective worship.
- 1.3 SACREs faced challenges monitoring RE and collective worship during this period, especially where they had relied on visits to schools in the past, but some overcame this through virtual meetings with teachers. Some SACREs committed themselves to a visits programme in the year following on from the report submitted.
- 1.4 The Government decision to extend the examination and reporting arrangements for all subjects at GCSE and A Level during the year covered by this report had a significant impact on SACREs to report on the number of candidates and attainment. Where SACREs were able to report on standards this was due established e-networks and strong relationships with schools and academies.
- 1.5 The primary function of a SACRE is to advise the local authority on religious education and collective worship, and to report on how the local authority responded to the advice. Only a minority of SACREs reported that they had advised the local authority and only a minority of those reported on the response. The two main topics for advice were the need for an Agreed Syllabus review and funding for SACRE activities along with the need to appoint members to SACRE so that SACRE could function.
- 1.6 SACREs were more likely to advise schools on religious education than give advice to the LA but less likely to give advice on collective worship.
- 1.7 Some SACREs reported on support networks for teachers and training events but were unlikely to monitor the quality and impact of that training.
- 1.8 The majority of SACREs reported on requests for Determination and monitored complaints relating to RE and collective worship and a minority also monitored withdrawal.
- 1.9 The majority of SACREs reported on partnerships they had with other bodies and some had extended their remit into other curriculum areas as they were seen as trusted bodies, this related specifically to RSE/RSHE.



2. Recommendations to NASACRE Executive

On the basis of the evidence it is recommended that NASACRE discusses the following recommendations.

2.1 NASACRE support for SACRES

- i. Advice should be developed for SACREs on advising their local authority on RE and collective worship and reporting on how the LA responded to advice¹.
- ii. Advice developed on how SACRE annual reports could have a greater focus on the impact of their work, showing their value as statutory bodies.
- iii. NASACRE could develop a series of case studies to support SACRE members' training, exemplifying ways that SACREs have been creative in working with schools and other partners and the impact that this has had.
- iv. Revisit the annual report proforma on a regular basis.

2.2 NASACRE discussion with the DfE

- v. Discuss the ongoing strategy for ensuring 100% return on SACRE Annual reports as required by legislation.
- vi. Clarify what the response of the DfE would be where SACREs reported that the LA had not followed the advice of SACRE or where a SACRE could not function as a result of the lack of support from the LA.
- vii. Discuss how government can clarify and support the role of SACREs in relation to non-denominational academies in light of LA responsibilities to parents/guardians and their children in the authority², with a view to revising current guidance which is now 10 years old³.
- viii. Discuss the need to update *Religious education in English schools: non-statutory guidance 2010*⁴ and *Circular 1/94*⁵, both of which remain on the government's website as current advice.

2.3 Advice to LAs co-produced by NASACRE and DfE

- ix. Produce a guide for LAs, with the support of the DfE, to ensure authorities meet their statutory responsibilities.
- x. Advise LAs as to the continued nature of SACREs as statutory bodies appointed by the LA and that SACREs should at least have the same support and status as other local authority committees⁶.

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/281929/Collective worship in schools.pdf?msclkid=abf0da16d07711ecba73b170373fca63

⁶ In line with the requirements of <u>The Religious Education (Meetings of Local Conferences and Councils)</u> Regulations 1994.



supporting strengthening promoting

¹ The local authority is responsible for securing the standard of education for pupils in or from the authority, that includes religious education and collective worship.

² https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/31/section/10

³ https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/re-and-collective-worship-in-academies-and-free-schools/religious-education-re-and-collective-worship-in-academies-and-free-schools?msclkid=3a97f159d07511ec9cb4ba4b39523eed

 $^{^{4} \}underline{\text{https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010?msclkid=3a98619ed07511ec9a84ffc6a5aa5dc4}$

3.1 Introduction

- 3.1.1 The Analysis for SACRE Annual Reports 2020 2021 was commissioned by the NASACRE Executive with the agreement for the Department for Education (DfE).
- 3.1.2 Of 153 SACREs in England, 57 submitted a report by the 30 April 2022 (37.25%), noting that in the previous year 68 (43.8%) were received by December 2021 for the year 2019 2020.
- 3.1.3 There is a recommended format for SACRE annual reports, which is available from NASACRE but not all SACREs use this format some using earlier formats and others being peculiar to a SACRE. Some reports ran to 22 pages whilst others were 2 pages. Therefore, this analysis has not used the NASACRE recommended format rather it has identified 21 categories as the basis for data collection and analysis, see Methodology below. These categories were discussed with NASACRE's Executive Assistant during the process of data collection. See Appendices 1 and 2 for the categories used for analysis in this report.

3.2 Methodology

3.2.1 Reports were received from 19 January to 25 April 2022. The first five reports submitted were analysed individually and then compared. Notes were made on differences in style and content, with key words identified for further analysis and the following categories identified (see also Appendix 1 and Appendix 2).

- Attendance
- Professional support
- Religious Education:
 - Advice to the local authority
 - Advice to schools⁷
- Collective worship:
 - Advice to the local authority
 - Advice to schools⁸
 - Determinations
- Monitoring:
 - Complaints (RE and CW)
 - Religious Education
 - Collective Worship
- Agreed Syllabus Review
 - Training for implementation of the syllabus

As more reports were received further categories were added:

- SACRE funding
- Examination performance
 - o GCSE
 - A Level

⁸ Schools here refers to non-denominational schools and academies and free schools without a religious foundation.



supporting strengthening promoting

⁷ Schools here refers to maintained non-denominational and controlled schools and academies and free schools without a religious foundation.

- Covid-19
- Communication with schools and others
- Collaboration with other bodies
- Development Planning
- Relationships and Sex Education/Health Education (RSE/RSHE)

3.2.2 The latter were added relative to the frequency they featured in reports received. These indicated new areas that SACREs were working in their authorities. Where statistical analysis appeared above or below what might be expected from the range in other categories they were revisited to check and amend as necessary.

3.3 Ethics

See Appendix 3 for details.

3.4 Declaration of interest

The author has written SACRE annual reports for a number of authorities in the past. No work for a local authority or SACRE was undertaken during the period from agreeing to do this research to its completion. The author declares no interest relevant to this research, and has refrained from making judgements on the reports submitted.

3.5 Confidence interval

The confidence interval as to how representative the findings of this report are in relation to all SACRE reports in England is <u>95%</u>, based on:

$$\bar{x} \pm Z \frac{s}{\sqrt{n}}$$

Sample mean (\overline{x}) : 153; Sample size (n) 57;

Standard deviation (s): 67.882250993909: Standard error: 8.991:

Confidence level: 95 %; Z-score (Z) 1.959964; σ or right tailed p value 0.025.

3.6 Caveat

It does not follow that SACRE Reports report fully on their support or activities, given that some are relatively short. This report is based only on what SACREs stated.

4. The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and public health measures on SACREs

4.1 SACRE meetings

4.1.1 Over 98% of SACRE mentioned Covid-19 and/or pandemic in relation to their work during this period. During this period special regulations were in place for remote and virtual meeting up to 28 April 2021 (see: Hertfordshire County Council & Ors v Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government [2021] EWHC 1093 (Admin) (28 April 2021) Judgement). SACREs also organise visits to schools for a variety of purposes, such as scheduled SACRE meetings or monitoring visits. It was clear from reports that business could not be business as usual for many SACREs.

4.1.2 What was not clear from the reports was whether SACREs, as locally appointed statutory bodies, were expected to operate in the same way as other local authority



meetings over the period of transition from virtual to in person meetings. If not this would indicate, in individual cases, a local authority's understanding of the nature of SACRE and its significance in statute.

One SACRE report stated:

Unfortunately, we have been unable to arrange meetings in the last academic year, 2020/2021 due to Covid lockdowns, members' shielding and availability of suitably sized meeting rooms.

As can be seen, it was not simply the availability of space for meetings but also the impact that Covid-19 had on members.

But this response was not universal as noted in one report, which stated that it had continued to use a virtual platform for meetings:

As can be seen above, the members of both SACRE and Agreed Syllabus Conference continued to work and meet regularly through the second year of the pandemic. Attendance has been good and meetings have been quorate. The SACRE Exec have met between meetings to progress work and ensure profitable meetings. SACRE aims to develop its members by encouraging them to participate in meetings, and to lead on items where possible.

4.2 Monitoring RE, Collective Worship and public examinations

4.2.1 The majority of reports stated that it was not possible to monitor schools and examination results during this period. One SACRE report puts it:

Covid 19 has posed a considerable challenge to SACRE's usual monitoring processes.

4.2.2 Some SACRE's, though, found solutions to these challenges. One SACRE had continued to give advice to the local authority:

The Local Authority has been advised that despite the pandemic RE remains a statutory subject for all pupils in all schools. The LA has continued to support the delivery of the RE networks and ensure that LA officer is available to support at each of the sessions.

4.2.3 Training continued:

Whilst the Covid 19 pandemic continued to cause complications, the Advisor was still able to deliver training and CPD support to both primary and secondary schools via online sessions, held with support from the LA.

4.2.4 Schools websites and online network meetings were also important sources of information for SACREs, here are four examples:



Website trawls have revealed that RE has continued to be delivered in some face-to-face lessons and remote learning, but many teachers attending RE Network meetings admitted to little or no RE having been taught.

SACRE members had been monitoring the websites of schools and once this bit of work was completed decided that schools should be written to advertising SACRE and reminding them to make sure that RE was visible on their websites. This letter was put on hold due to covid in order not to put more stress onto school leaders.

School websites were trawled for evidence of RE provision i.e. details of what was being taught in each year group as required by law. In secondaries, this was made more complex by the fact that many schools include RE under different headings. Some secondary findings were quite disturbing and were followed up.

Monitoring for this academic year took place via email conversations, online conversations and face to face conversations, where deemed safe due to Covid-19.

Conversations with teachers at RE Network meetings and in SACRE meetings, have highlighted the difficulty that some schools have had in maintaining effective RE teaching during the last year, while others have adapted well and quickly to new ways of working.

The previous quotes in this paragraph underline the increasing significance of what schools and academies put on their websites and the important role that technology has in informing SACREs, so that they can have a strong evidence base for their advice to the LA.

4.2.5 A small number of SACREs, despite restrictions and the government's non-reporting of GCSE and A Level Results, published the Joint Council for Qualifications results and then asked schools to confirm whether these results reflected their own and where there had been an improvement on previous years or not. One SACRE stated:

Due to the pandemic, GCSEs in 2020 were teacher assessed grades. We have received data from 80% of the Secondary schools. 1079 year 11 students were assessed for Religious Studies qualifications, this is approximately 36% of the year 11 cohort. There were no entries for the short

course GCSE in 2020. Some schools enter the vast majority of their students for Religious Studies. Students at one school achieved particularly well in 2020 compared to other schools with a high number of entries. Attainment was also high at X, compared to other schools where relatively fewer students were entered.

4.2.6 It was clear that some SACREs had important existing relationships with schools and strong networks that enabled continuing relationship during the pandemic. Other SACREs were inventive with their time, realising that they could not visit schools, but



they could visit school websites, report on findings and make suggestions as to the next steps.

4.2.7 One SACRE, though, was looking beyond the pandemic and what might be needed in terms of learning lost due to lockdown:

A larger piece of work for SACRE and the RE consultant was deciding to create a recovery RE curriculum for schools for the Autumn term 2020.

5 Support for SACREs and SACRE arrangements

5.1 Support for SACRES

84% of SACREs reported that they had professional support from an advisor, consultant, consultancy and/or a clerk. The breadth of arrangements reflected the budget provided by the local authority and in some cases, where there was no budget specified, the provision of an adviser and clerk was a signal of the LA's commitment to SACRE. One SACRE reported:

No identifiable budget is provided for SACRE. However, clerking is provided by the LA's Governor Support Services, the Chair of SACRE is an LA officer and a venue for the meeting are all provided by the LA. These costs are all borne by the LA.

In part this may be to do with NASACRE's self-evaluation proforma at 4d where Professional and Financial Support are conflated but further research would need to confirm this.

Where there was no advisor or consultant SACRE members had to rely on their own resources, one report stated that:

As there is no RE advisor or paid support for RE, all development work is usually led by members of SACRE and/or local teachers.

A small number of SACREs reported that they used the advice and support services from other local authorities, these tended to be smaller authorities and therefore there was an overall saving for the smaller authority.

5.2 Funding for SACRES

5.2.1 77% of SACRE reports mentioned funding but less than half of those (43.2%) identified a figure or, in some cases, a detailed budget.

5.2.2 NASACRE's FOI request on SACRE funding was reported widely across SACREs in 2020 – 2021 but it did not follow that these reports included any information about funding from the LA or a budget.

As one SACRE reported:

SACRE discussed the NASACRE report on funding for SACREs.





but no reference to a budget or funding from the LA appeared in the report. Some SACREs quoted the NASACRE research and used it as a comparison in relation to their settlement.

5.2.3 One SACRE noted:

SACRE's capacity to conduct direct monitoring has always been limited and there is a need to consider how this activity will take place in the future given current budget pressures.

5.3 Attendance and quoracy

3.3.1 Just under 60% of annual reports reported on attendance at SACRE meetings for the period of the report. There were a number of different ways of doing this:

- Giving a full list of SACRE members by Group and identifying which meeting they attended.
- Attendance reported as percentage for each group for each meeting.
- By member, but not by group.
- In a special appendix to the report but not submitted as part of the report.
- By providing hyperlinks to the minutes of meetings so that they could be viewed by those interested.
- Noting that all meetings were quorate but giving no detail.
- Noting apologies but not attendance.
- 5.3.2 Some SACREs reported on whether meetings were quorate, often linked to Covid-19 restrictions and alternative arrangements but not all. One SACRE gave a list of who was at each meeting and it was clear that at least one of the meetings was inquorate but no mention was made of that. One SACRE reported:

Membership in each of the four groups is inconsistent and as a result some meetings have been inquorate. SACRE has requested that the local authority supports them in identifying faith/community leaders to support their membership.

- 5.3.3 A small number of SACRE reports (\leq 4%) appended a constitution to the report submitted. It was not clear why, but this did enable readers to compare the membership of SACRE with the membership required by the constitution.
- 5.3.4 The Religious Education (Meetings of Local Conferences and Councils) Regulations 1994: UK Statutory Instruments 1994 No. 1304 (see footnote 6). No SACRE reported on issues relating to SI 1994: 1304, although there clearly were issues due to Covid-19 restrictions and how these were managed when restrictions were lifted.

6. Religious Education

This section covers advice to the LA from SACREs, advice and support for schools, monitoring RE and Agreed Syllabus Review. Some of what is in paragraphs 4.1-4.2 will also feature in this section as the reports were written when the impact of Covid-19 was a major concern for SACREs. Quotes from section 4 will be referenced but not repeated.



6.1 Advice to the local authority

6.1.1 NASACRE's guidance on SACRE Annual Reports⁹ states:

The main purpose of the annual report is to hold the LA to account, by informing the Secretary of State and key partners what advice SACRE gave the LA during the year and how that was responded to; this includes advice on RE and Collective Worship in those schools for which the LA has responsibility.

This is consonant with government advice based on the requirements of the Education Reform Act 1988¹⁰ and subsequent consolidated legislation.

6.1.2 During the year under report 33% of SACREs reported that they had advised the LA on matters relating to RE. Although one SACRE simply stated:

No specific advice was given to the local authority during this academic year.

6.1.3 In some of these reports the advice related to resourcing and funding SACRE and Agreed Syllabus reviews:

Advice was given to the local authority around the necessity to review the current RE agreed syllabus and to ensure that schools were aware of what would be in place for September 2021-2026.

6.1.4 Other SACREs advised on matters relating to schools and their statutory or contractual duties (in the case of Academies), for example:

SACRE also advised the local authority on contacting schools who did not appear to be fulfilling legal requirements for RE provision or who were entering no or low pupil numbers for exams in RE.

6.1.5 One SACRE submitted its report to a scrutiny committee recommending it to comment on and to note:

The work of SACRE in the implementation of the Local Agreed Syllabus, raising the profile and importance of religious education and supporting the high-quality teaching of Religious Education in schools and academies.

This was a rare case that indicated the way that a SACRE communicates with its local authority. Looking at the report, though, it did not mention the response of the scrutiny committee to its previous report.

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/281929/Collective worship in schools.pdf see paragraphs 98 - 100.



supporting strengthening promoting

 $[\]frac{\text{https://nasacre.org.uk/file/nasacre/SACRE Annual Reports necessary desir.pdf#:~:text=The%20main%20purpose%20of%20the%20annual%20report%20is,responsibility.%20Suggested%20structure%20to%20the%20annual%20report%3A%201}.$

6.1.6 Another area of advice to the LA was SACRE membership, as noted above in 5.3.3, and requests such as:

To review the membership of SACRE to ensure it reflects the breadth and diversity of the borough in terms of faiths and beliefs.

This example emphasises the role of the LA as the appointing body and may indicate that some LAs are not taking their responsibilities seriously.

6.1.7 What was not evident, other than in response to advice to convene an Agreed Syllabus Conference, was what the response of the local authority was to the advice of SACRE. To that extent it appears that the conversation is one way but that may not be the case, it may simply be that SACREs are not reporting on the LA's response to its advice other than in a request for funding or the convening of an Agreed Syllabus Conference.

6.2 Monitoring RE

Monitoring in general

6.2.1 As noted in 2.2 many SACREs found it impossible to monitor RE in schools due to restrictions relating to the pandemic. Despite this around 42% of SACREs engaged in some form of monitoring of RE.

SACRE developed and approved a monitoring questionnaire in the academic year 2020-21 and this was circulated to schools in September 2021. In future years this will strengthen monitoring. In 2020-21 the main focus of monitoring was through the review of the locally Agreed Syllabus. Consultation with teachers took place via a questionnaire and the Agreed Syllabus Conference.

A representative monitoring group has met virtually during the period of this report, at a suitable time before each full SACRE meeting in order to monitor the effectiveness of the Agreed Syllabus.

6.2.2 Where SACREs monitored RE in schools, including Academies, one tool was scrutinising schools' websites to see they stated about RE in the school, the curriculum offer and other details such as attainment in Religious Studies. The following is one example of a SACRE's reported findings:

School websites were trawled for evidence of RE provision i.e. details of what was being taught in each year group as required by law. In secondaries, this was made more complex by the fact that many schools include RE under different headings. Some secondary findings were quite disturbing and were followed up.

Monitoring primary RE

6.2.3 42% of SACREs reported monitoring primary RE. This was predominantly done through online teacher events, such as primary support groups, where teachers were asked questions and had discussions about RE in their schools and the impact of the pandemic.



Conversations with teachers at network meetings and training events strongly suggest that teachers have continued to provide excellent RE provision despite the challenges of the pandemic.

Monitoring secondary RE

6.2.4 42% of SACREs also reported monitoring non-examination RE in secondary schools on a similar basis to that for primary schools. Existing networks of teachers provided a valuable resource for SACREs. Fewer SACREs reported on examination performance (GCSE 35% and A Level 19%). Where examination results were reported on this was predominantly historic with the latest published results being recorded and noting that results for the previous year were unavailable. As noted in 4.2.5 (above) online meetings with teachers were an opportunity to ask questions about GCSE and A Level attainment to see if the results were in line with the expectation of the school for each candidate.

Complaints about RE in schools¹¹

6.2.5 56% of SACREs reported that they monitored complaints about RE in the schools that come under their remit. Only one SACRE received a complaint about the RE curriculum in a secondary school:

During the year there was one parental complaint about religious education referred to SACRE. This involved a secondary school in the borough and their teaching of Hinduism. The RE Advisor worked individually with this school to review and enhance their curriculum materials relating to the specific aspect of Hinduism raised as a concern, develop the subject leaders' substantive knowledge of Hinduism and raise awareness of common misconceptions. Subsequently, the subject lead and the parent concerned have confirmed they were pleased with the support provided.

Whilst there was only one formal complaint about RE in a school dealt with by a SACRE another SACRE noted:

However, SACRE has been made aware of a few concerns made by parents and members of the community in relation to some content used in lessons, and some references used on the Agreed Syllabus website.

Therefore, the absence of formal complaints does not imply that there isn't discontent with RE in some areas but that these issues are resolved before they become formal complaints to the local authority and referred to SACRE.

Withdrawals from RE

6.2.6 30% of SACREs mentioned withdrawals from RE, of these 41% stated that pupils had been withdrawn and presented the statistics in a variety of ways. One SACRE reported on a year by year basis over a five-year period. Other SACREs reported only for the year under report. Here are some examples:

Data collected from schools would suggest that a small proportion of pupils are withdrawn from RE and CW across the county. Pupils come from the following

¹¹ Schools here does not include Academies, Free Schools or maintained Aided schools,



supporting strengthening promoting religious backgrounds: 57% Jehovah's Witnesses, 18% Muslim, 3% Plymouth Brethren, 3% Humanist and 19% unrecorded.

From the LA's monitoring of schools, we know that 70 pupils have been withdrawn from RE lessons across primary and secondary schools

SACRE have been officially informed of six pupils withdrawn from RE from two schools.

Some schools have contacted the RE Consultant about withdrawal of pupils and been given advice on how to deal with this.

One SACRE had no hard data but commented:

Anecdotally, however it seems that the number of children and young people being withdrawn from RE continues to be low and not an issue for concern.

Where SACREs stated that there had been no withdrawal some caveated that was on the basis it had not been brought to their attention.

Training for RE (including Agreed Syllabus implementation)

6.2.7 40% of SACREs reported that training for schools had taken place during the year, especially where a new agreed syllabus had been introduced. Training was predominantly online and delivered through existing networks supported by an advisor, consultant or consultancy. Some SACREs gave specific course details and noted their wider benefits:

Training provided was virtual and as follows:

- Primary Twilight Teaching Christianity
- Half day 'What makes an effective Primary RE Lead
- Primary Twilight Teaching Islam
- Half day 'Implementation and Impact of Primary RE
- Primary Twilight Creating Communities of Enquiry
- Half day 'How to monitor progress in RE'

These courses are well received and have good attendance. They also provide opportunities to discuss national RE trends and discussions. As well as feedback on what further support teachers require.

Structured professional development has been provided through the following courses, all on-line:

- Primary RE Network: held each term after the school day, with about 20 teachers regularly attending
- Intent, Implementation and Impact: supporting schools preparing their 'Intent' statements and designing a curriculum (8)
- Three Faiths: developing subject knowledge of Judaism, Islam and Sikhism though a series of three webinars and including a guest from the respective faith community (about 15)
- RE Coordinator training: two linked evening sessions to support RE lead teachers (run twice) (22)



More informal and ad-hoc support has been provided through email, zoom and phone calls and through a limited number of RE reviews.

6.2.8 Only 7% of SACREs reported on their monitoring of training and its impact. The role of SACREs in ensuring the quality of resources and training courses in the delivery of the agreed syllabus has long been expected of SACRE, as can be seen in Education Reform Act 1988 s11 (2) consolidated in the 1996 Education Act and reflected in the comment in Circular 1/94:

It is for a LEA to decide what matters it wishes to refer to its SACRE; but the 1988 Act says that these should include, in particular, methods of teaching, the choice of teaching material and the provision of teacher training.

Noting that the LA should take a lead on this and positively decide what it should refer to SACRE. Given that the LA remains responsible for the quality of education provision for the children who live in the authority this extends to Academies and even other authorities where appropriate¹².

6.3 Advice to schools and Agreed Syllabus Review

Advice to schools

6.3.1 49% of SACREs reported on advice that they have made available to schools, some of which was produced by SACREs before the time period under report. The most common type of advice related to the implementation of the Agreed Syllabus but there was also advice more broadly than that relating to the curriculum, such as advice on fasting during Ramadan or the wearing of the K's for Amritdhari pupils. At times SACREs reported that advice was given but only in general terms:

Advice about curriculum delivery was given via the SACRE newsletter.

6.3.2 SACREs also reported on making available national documents to schools to inform them in such a way as to influence teachers, such as:

Commissioned projects including those linked to Research awards (NASACRE/ Westhill/ CSGT/ Young Ambassadors/ WIRE award) have been shared and offered to schools free of charge to increase engagement and interest in RE.

6.3.3 Whilst some SACREs did report on feedback from teachers at training events and network meetings they did not report on the impact that advice had on schools or how it had changed the way schools delivered RE or used resources.

Agreed Syllabus Review

6.3.4 51% of SACREs reported that a new syllabus was being implemented, that a review had started or was in process or had just completed. Some SACREs reported on their advice to the LA that the syllabus needed reviewing in line with statute¹³ and that there were funding implications to that. Where the local authority's syllabus was

¹³ In line with The Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education (Prescribed Period) Order 1999: UK Statutory Instruments 1999 No. 1728.



supporting strengthening promoting

¹² The Children Act 2004 c. 31Part 2 General Section 10 (2):

shared with other authorities or written in collaboration with a consultancy or publisher this was usually stated.

7. Collective Worship

7.1 Advice to the local authority

9% of SACREs reported that they had given advice to the local authority with regard to collective worship. This included asking the LA to provide data on collective worship, to remind schools of the requirement to provide collective worship and on how to deal with specific issues arising in the LA's schools:

The RE consultant to SACRE has given advice to the local authority on a number of occasions in 2020/2021. Some of these have fallen into assistance with parental objections to a part of collective worship. The meetings often have to unpack cultural and religious objections, offering a great learning experience for parents as well as school leaders.

7.2 Monitoring Collective Worship

7.2.1 23% of SACRE reported positively monitoring collective worship in schools, one report stated:

We monitor Collective Worship by scrutinising Ofsted reports, through conversations with teachers/local clergy/ministers and a SACRE member who participates in school Collective Acts of Worship.

Other SACREs where monitoring collective worship was mentioned reported that it could not happen as a result of the pandemic, see section 4 above.

7.2.2 Other authorities have a systematic approach to monitoring collective worship by using surveys or scrutinising schools' websites:

In April 2021, SACRE undertook a survey in our schools to find out about the delivery of Collective Worship. Fourteen schools sent in replies to the survey and the findings show that there are differing approaches across our schools. Only one school had any requests to withdraw children from CW and none had considered applying for a Determination.

Monitoring RE and Collective Worship is discussed at each meeting. The SACRE had spent time checking all the websites of schools, looking for information on these two items.

7.2.3 There are recognised challenges to monitoring collective worship:

SACRE continues to hold the provision of good quality collective worship to be of paramount importance, such that it features frequently in our meetings. some resources and materials have been provided to schools and will continue to be available via the new LA website. A picture of what Collective Worship (CW) has been gained from schools attending networks, and through contact with/requests from members of SACRE, but not all schools across the Borough have provided feedback.



SACRE finds that compliance with legal requirements in primary schools continues to be good. Because of constraints on space in secondary schools, compliance with legal requirements remains a cause for concern in most schools. SACRE has therefore included supporting Collective Worship in Secondary schools a priority in its 3-Year Action Plan 2021-2024.

7.2.4 Some SACREs reported monitoring visits to schools by SACRE members but during the pandemic most monitoring occurred through virtual meetings with RE teachers.

7.3 Advice to schools

7.3.1 45% of SACREs reported that they had provided advice on collective worship to schools. Much of this was signposting schools to existing resources such as model policies, protocols around visitors to collective worship, policies on withdrawal and advice on topics and resources for collective worship.

SACRE have previously provided resources for use in school assemblies including guidance on Collective Worship with ideas and suggestions for quality collective worship is on the LA's website.

7.3.2 As noted in 4.2 the pandemic caused particular challenges, at time leading to SACREs postponing their plans, but some SACREs continued to give advice and support:

Due to Covid restrictions collective worship/assemblies have been significantly curtailed during the last year, but support has been given to help schools access virtual input for this important aspect of school life.

This support in some areas extended to pupils schooled at home during the first lockdown and one SACRE reported feedback for the resources it had produced:

"Daily collective worship during lockdown provided an essential link between school and home and was much appreciated by our families from the feedback we received. We are grateful for the resources SACRE produced to support us during this time."

7.3.3 On the whole SACREs either gave advice to schools or to the local authority on collective worship, with only one SACRE gave advice to both the LA and schools (1.8%). In part this appears due to lack of information that SACREs had about what is happening in schools during the pandemic. According to some reports this situation was not helped by a lack of reporting on Collective Worship by Ofsted. Whilst there has been a national review of RE as a curriculum subject there is nothing equivalent in relation to collective worship. Hence, SACREs have a responsibility for an area that is part of the school's day which appears to be a low priority nationally and locally. As a result of this there is a sense of frustration on the part of some SACREs as can be seen from the following quote (that also references RE):

The SACRE has only limited information about the quality of RE provision in schools in addition to the information about the outcomes of public



examinations in secondary schools. The SACRE does not make local-authority-wide checks on the extent to which all schools comply fully with the legal requirements for RE. Information mostly comes from any visits made to schools each year by the RE consultant, informally from staff at the local schools and contact with RE subject leaders on the SACRE. Very little information is provided in current Ofsted reports about RE or collective worship in the local area. The SACRE continues to believe that it is a matter of considerable regret that Ofsted no longer makes rigorous checks on the extent of compliance with statutory requirements for RE and collective worship when schools, especially secondary schools, are inspected.

7.4 Determinations and withdrawals

Determinations

7.4.1 Of the 77% of SACREs that mentioned determinations in their annual reports the vast majority reported that there had been no applications for a determination. Where determinations had been made SACREs reported on each application and the period to which the determination applied.

Withdrawals

7.4.2 Where withdrawals were reported on this was often groups with withdrawals from RE (see 6.2.6 above). The 30% of SACREs that reported on withdrawals from also reported on withdrawals from RE. As mentioned in 6.2.6 one SACRE presented detailed statistics showing the pattern over time, such as:

The LA officer to SACRE informs the Chair and Vice Chair of any completed or rescinded requests. 2020/21 1 from Collective Worship 2020/21 3 from RE 2019/20 9 from Collective Worship 2019/20 7 from RE 2018/19 14 from Collective Worship 2018/19 11 from RE 2017/18 11 from Collective Worship 2017/18 4 from RE 2016/17 13 from Collective Worship 2106/17 9 from RE

This approach enables readers to have a longer-term view and to determine whether there is a pattern that can be observed. In this case it appears that withdrawals are becoming less common over time, there is no reason given for this. Of significance here, though, is the role of the LA in the process as opposed to individual schools.

8 Other features of SACRE annual reports

Development plans

8.1 It was notable that some SACREs published their development plans (33%) and in some instances these were used as a basis for self-evaluation. On the whole SACREs did not report on their progress in terms of the development plan within the body of the report, although one SACRE RAG rated the plan.

Communication with schools

8.2 79% of SACREs used e-newsletter or e-bulletins to communicate with schools. The frequency of these bulletins varies, and the pandemic had an impact on some





SACREs normal pattern. The most frequent pattern was a termly newsletter going to all schools. The impact of these was not reported on.

Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and Health Education¹⁴
8.3 Since the change in the law regarding relationships and sex education 4 SACREs (7%) reported an involvement in RSE. The involvement of SACREs relate to their relationships with faith communities and indicates the trust that these communities have in SACREs. This is obvious in the following quote:

At the start of the academic year Odcombe¹⁵ SACRE discussed implications of the Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) requirements particularly for Jewish faith schools. It was agreed that a working party would be set up, with the proviso of creating some guidance for these schools demonstrating how they could support the delivery of the requirements in a manner that reflects the ethos of the school.

There is a recognition that SACREs do not have a remit for RSE/RSHE but that they can make a valuable contribution to this issue due to their connections across communities within the authority. In the one area of England four SACREs are working in collaboration, as stated:

Standing Advisory Councils on RE (SACREs) are responsible for what their title says, Religious Education. We do not have a remit for RSHE and point schools and parents to the national and local guidance provided. However, recognising the links between RSHE and beliefs, East Coker SACRE, in partnership with West Coker, North Coker and Holywell, felt it would be helpful to offer some signposts and support to schools, teachers, parents and governors.

In September, they formed a small working group of SACRE members and local authority advisers to prepare an anthology of authentic and diverse faith perspectives on the areas covered in RSHE, along with some basic background information. Over the year the group presided over the compilation of these materials and involved over 40 members of faith communities, including SACRE members.

One SACRE reported:

There was an update from the RSE steering group, which had provided extensive support for schools in the formal introduction of Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) in Barwick schools. Schools had valued this, especially the resource "Getting to grips with the new RSHE curriculum" and were appropriately resourced for its implementation.

¹⁵ The names of SACREs have been replaced by the names of villages within walking distance of the author on the principle that no SACRE is named, see Appendix 3.



supporting strengthening promoting

¹⁴ https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/relationships-education-relationships-and-sex-education-rse-and-health-education

Equalities legislation

8.4 A further SACRE also reported on its position on equality focusing solely on sexual orientation:

Equality

When using the locally Agreed Syllabus, the SACRE has made it clear that schools need to take into account the position that some faith groups take with regard to human sexuality, so that LGBT (Lesbian, Gay, Bi sexual, and Transgendered) young people are not made to feel vulnerable when these issues are being explored.

9 Conclusion

9.1 During the reading of the reports, organising the data and writing this report three themes emerged, these were audience, relationships and creativity.

Audience

9.2 Some SACREs added their distribution lists to the report, but it was not clear who the audience was. If the Annual Report is to be sent to the Secretary of State reporting on the LA's response to SACREs advice, then it needs to be constructed in such a way that it fulfils that primary purpose. Given that local authorities have a responsibility to ensure the quality of education provided for the children who live in the authority's area, advice to the LA includes all schools irrespective of their status as maintained or independent. If the LA does not act on the advice of SACRE, then it must be held to account and as the provision in statute is to send the report to the Secretary of State it is reasonable to assume that it should be written with that audience in mind. This does not deny that there are other audiences, and they too need accommodating. Of course, there is then the question of what the Secretary of State is expected to do in light of reports submitted,

Relationships

9.3 One of the things that stand out from reading the reports is that some SACREs have strong relationships with their LA and within their LA. As a result they are seen as trusted bodies that can act as brokers in difficult situations, such as RSE/RSHE (see 8.3). It is not clear why this is the case and needs further reflection. It may because of the attitudes and opinions within the LA but similarly it might be to do with SACRE members themselves. Research into this area would be valuable.

Creativity

9.4 Despite the pandemic it was clear that some SACREs have been highly creative. Where that is the case it would be worth NASACRE identifying innovative practice, identifying the conditions that allow SACREs to flourish and publishing case studies to enable all SACREs to reflect on their own practice.

Dr David Hampshire FRSA 15 May 2022



Appendix 1

Categories used to analyse SACRE Annual Reports

- 1. Attendance
 - a. Notes on attendance
- 2. Professional support
- 3. Budget specified
- 4. RE Advice to the LA
- 5. RE Advice to schools (including non-LA)
- 6. CW monitoring
- 7. CW Advice to the LA
- 8. CW Advice to schools
- 9. Withdrawal
- 10. Determinations
- 11. Complaints monitored
- 12. Monitoring Primary RE
- 13. Monitoring Secondary RE:
 - a. non-examination
 - b. Standards GCSE
 - c. Standards A Level
- 14. Agreed Syllabus Review
- 15. Training and support for AS implementation and RE
- 16. Monitoring training for schools
- 17. Covid-19
- 18. Communication (newsletter)
- 19. Development Plan
- 20. Collaboration/links to other bodies
- 21. RSE/Health Education



Appendix 2: SACREs reporting by category (maximum n57/100%)

Category	Number of SACREs reporting by the end of April 2022	SACREs that
Attendance	34	59.64
Professional support	48	84.20
Funding/Budget	43	77.20
Budget specified	19	33.35
RE Advice to the LA	18	33.35
RE Advice to all schools	28	49.10
CW monitoring	13	22.80
CW Advice to the LA	5	8.80
CW Advice to all schools	26	45.60
Withdrawal	17	29.80
Determinations	44	77.20
Complaints monitored	32	56.15
Monitoring Primary RE	24	42.10
Secondary Standards: non-examination	24	42.10
Standards GCSE	20	35.10
Standards A Level	11	19.30
Agreed Syllabus Review	29	50.90
Training and support for AS	40	70.20
implementation and RE		
Monitoring training for schools	4	7.00
Covid-19	56	98.25
Communication (newsletter)	34	59.65
Development Plan	19	33.35
Collaboration/links to other bodies	45	78.95
RSE/Health Education	4	7.00

Note: percentages are rounded to the nearest 0 or 5 at the second decimal point.



Appendix 3: Research Ethics

The author is a member of the British Educational Research Association and the British Sociological Association, and the Ethical standards expected by both bodies were applied during the research; see,

British Educational Research Association:

https://www.bera.ac.uk/publication/ethical-guidelines-for-educational-research-2018, and

British Sociological Association:

https://www.britsoc.co.uk/media/24310/bsa_statement_of_ethical_practice.pdf.

During the research no local authority, SACRE, SACRE member, clerk to SACRE or RE Advisor or consultant was contacted for comment. SACRE Annual Reports are public documents the working presumption was that they were intended to be read by the interested public.

All data has been anonymised and no SACRE singled out for comment, a list of reports submitted to NASACRE and/or DfE are available on request and appear on the NASACRE website, when submitted. Where SACRE reports are quoted this has been for illustrative purposes not to make a judgement on the report used or the particular SACRE.





NASACRE 2022-23 virtual training programme

Agenda Item 10



Subscribed member SACREs

can get unlimited access for

22 September 2022, 7-8:30pm: So, you've joined your local SACRE...

Hosted by Denise Chaplin & Claire Clinton

Free online session

13 October 2022, 7-8:30pm: Applying and gaining for Westhill/NASACRE award

Chaired by Linda Rudge & Anne Andrews

17 November 2022, 7-8pm: SACREs - a way

Special guest: Charles Clarke

£20 for a subscribed SACRE and £30 for a non-subscribed SACRE

their entire SACRE Free online session membership to each and every webinar for an annual one off £50 fee! forward...? Chaired by Linda Rudge and Paul Smalley

6 December 2022, 7-8pm: How to effectively use pupil and teacher voice in your SACRE?

Hosted by Sukaina Manji and Claire Clinton

£20 for a subscribed SACRE and £30 for a non-subscribed SACRE

19 January 2023, 7-8:30pm: Being an effective Chair part 2

Chaired by Linda Rudge

£20 for a subscribed SACRE and £30 for a non-subscribed SACRE

21 February 2023, 4-5:30pm: Being an effective SACRE Clerk

Hosted by Exec members

£20 for a subscribed SACRE and £30 for a non-subscribed SACRE

14 March 2023, 7-8pm: What's happening to Collective Worship beyond determinations?

Hosted by Lesley Prior

£20 for a subscribed SACRE and £30 for a non-subscribed SACRE

26 June 2023, 7-8:30pm: So, you've joined your local SACRE...

Hosted by Exec members

Free online session

Feedback from last year's training:

"Great way to see and be part of the bigger picture."

"I think the programme has been excellent this year, relevant and well paced. Circulating materials afterwards has been productive and a useful aide memoire."

To book a place on any session, or to purchase our training package, please email admin@nasacre.org.uk

support page on the NASACRE website for more information

Visit our training and

www.nasacre.org.uk



Latest news and updates from NASACRE

View this email in your browser



National Association of Standing Advisory Councils on Religious Education

SACRE BRIEFING

Issue: 32

This issue includes:

- · Welcome from the Chair
- NASACRE Conference and AGM 2022
- Westhill/NASACRE Awards
- NASACRE's new website
- NASACRE membership
- Subscriptions for 2022-23
- SACRE Annual Reports
- SACRE Self-evaluation tool
- NASACRE's online Training Programme for 2022-23
- The Inter Faith Network (IFN)
- Inter Faith Week 2022
- Draft REC Handbook
- Items for your next Agenda

Welcome from the Chair

Welcome to our final Briefing for this academic year.

As you will have seen from Conference proceedings on the new website **2022: Ambitious SACREs**, the Association ends the year on an ambitious note as we look forward to 2022-23, and **NASACRE's 30th Anniversary year**.

We had several changes to the Executive committee at our AGM, saying some fond farewells to long-standing and highly respected members of the association – Alex Klein, Roy Galley and Michael Metcalfe. We look forward to working with Saquat Ali, our new Treasurer, as he steps into the role that Michael has held since NASACRE began.

As members will know, we are always looking for nominations to the Executive committee, and especially for the role of Vice-Chair. Currently, without an elected Vice-Chair, our collaborative ways of working mean that various colleagues have offered time and expertise to support the Chair's role and to take on specific tasks to share the load. I am grateful to them all, especially our Executive Assistant, Paul Smalley, who is continuing in this role for the coming year.

If there was space, I'd thank everyone on the team individually, but Claire Clinton deserves a special mention at this point in the year. She and her team have organised a highly appreciated and well-attended CPD programme for NASACRE members, and next year's is already planned and advertised (below). Claire is also the congratulated as the new **National Director of RE Hubs**

As always, we respond as quickly as we can to individual queries from SACREs – but don't forget our **FAQs** as some answers are already available. *This Briefing* contains several reminders about material that is already on our site – thank you to Marie and Matt for all that has been done to manage the transfer of data and the archive.

Member SACREs have been reminded that contact details provided by your Clerks are publicly available on the site.

One of the most pressing queries this term was (and is) the meaning and potential impact of the government's White Paper on Education for RE and Collective Worship, and the subsequent Schools Bill – currently progressing through the House of Lords. Our regular scheduled meetings with DfE advisers and officials, and with partner associations within the Professional RE Group (PREG), enable us to influence decisions and to stay informed about fast-moving situations – and as I write, a new Secretary of State has just been announced. We look forward to helping the DfE to brief The Right Honourable James Cleverly MP on the long-standing contributions SACREs and local government have made to Religious Education and to wider issues connected with the place of religion and worldviews in schools and beyond.

NASACRE has continued to publish reports – please see the forthcoming report by Dr David Hampshire on the analysis of annual SACRE reports – and to innovate in terms of communications and publicity. When discussing RE and its impact in society with other associations and with government departments, we have been impressed with the 'RE Report Card' disseminated through **REThinkRE**, and we are working on a similar presentation to cover the work of SACREs. Watch this space in the autumn!

In the meantime, thanks to Denise Chaplin and Anne Andrews for compiling this Briefing. I wish everyone a restful and relaxing summer, and look forward to meeting again next year.

NASACRE Conference and AGM 2022

This year, we held our second online Conference and AGM.

If you missed it, or want to catch up, there is a **summary** on the website along with the AGM reports. For more information on the feedback from the new format for SACRE Annual Reports, see section 2.3 below.

We plan to hold our 2023 NASACRE conference face-to-face in London. Watch out for more information soon.

Here we share with you some of the key conference messages and publicly available resources:

Westhill/NASACRE Award project - Interfaith Encounters for Pupils and Teachers by Barking and Dagenham SACRE. This project organised a range of subject knowledge enhancement sessions across a range of faiths and venues. These events were filmed and are **available to view**. These sessions were a response to the **survey into teacher subject knowledge**.

Westhill/NASACRE Award project - RE Subject Knowledge Enhancement Programme by Coventry and Warwickshire SACREs featured live events where SACRE members gave a tour of places of worship, a talk on their tradition and answered questions for teachers. Short subject knowledge films were produced by a professional filmographer for use in schools to support teacher subject knowledge and these were supplemented with 'road maps' (sharing approaches and resources for teaching each tradition) and image banks. These will be made available for any schools or SACREs to use **here**.

Westhill/NASACRE Awards

Over the last fifteen years, the Westhill/NASACRE Awards have given SACREs opportunities to enhance their capacity to generate high quality experiences in RE (or Collective Worship) for their schools.

This year, NASACRE again encouraged individual SACREs (or SACREs in partnership) to apply for a Westhill/NASACRE Award for 2022-23 up to £4,000.

2022-23 winners:

Bristol SACRE

Pairs of KS3 pupils will be carrying out videoed interviews with selected faith/non-religious representatives tapping into creative/ethical aspects of their lives, followed by a larger 'sharing' conference and class discussions.

Building on Leicester's engagement with peace-building, and on a newly devised "Peace Tour" within the city, the project will develop a scheme of work on Peace for KS1 through to KS4, linked to the Agreed Syllabus and with assembly material.

Luton SACRE

The funding will provide Phase 2 of a Climate Justice project, in partnership with a local youth charity: 75 secondary pupils will be developing artwork after a multi-faith workshop on "faith, nature, earth and climate", which will be exhibited and used as a stimulus for further creative responses.

A fourth project is still under consideration.

SACREs are reminded that NASACRE offers a training event on how to apply for an award.

NASACRE's new website

The new **NASACRE website** has gone public!

Please let us know if you spot or experience any problems in using it; we're expecting the website to develop further as we go along. Your 2021-22 password will enable paid-up member SACREs to access a streamlined members' section which we hope to grow over the next couple of years.

We now have a place for sharing publications and information from SACREs and our partner associations. We're aware that SACREs publish advice to schools on many themes, and if you are happy to share your work, please send it (or a weblink) with a brief description to **Marie**, so that she might upload it. Showcasing the work of SACREs will also help NASACRE to raise their profile and celebrate the wide range of tasks in which they are involved.

NASACRE membership

If you are thinking about your membership and who should be part of SACRE, then do look at the **FAQ section** of the website and take note of the information given below.

Guidance from the DfE on these issues is available at:

 $https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/190260/DCSF-00114-2010.pdf$

- a SACRE does not determine its own membership that is a matter for the LA (the Council)
- if an LA were to seek its SACRE's advice on its own membership, then anything that the SACRE says is simply that advice, not a definitive legal statement
- currently, representatives of Humanists UK have different positions on different SACREs some do not include them at all, others include them as co-opted members with no voting rights and others include them as full members of Group A and at least one LA has appointed a Humanist to Group D.

It might be assumed that LAs with Humanist representation on their SACREs decided on this latter option because:

- there are significant numbers of non-religious people in the local community and
- Humanism and other non-religious world views feature in the syllabus and must be studied this reflects the picture at national level, where Humanists UK plays an appropriate role in developing and supporting high quality RE and is for example a member body of the RE Council etc.

The **Still Standing** report also has guidance and questions for SACREs to use to help them review their membership.

Subscriptions for 2022-23

Subscriptions for the year 2022-23 will be arriving with your SACRE Clerk soon.

When you arrange payment, please also ensure that **admin@nasacre.org.uk** has all the up to date details of your SACRE Clerk, Adviser, Chair and Local Authority officer. If your SACRE has a Twitter handle or Facebook page or a website, please include these details. Let NASACRE also know if your Local Authority hosts Practice.

SACRE Annual Reports

Do encourage your SACRE to use the new annual report template.

NASACRE has worked with the DfE to draw up this new template for SACRE Annual Reports to make it easier to carry out an annual analysis of these reports for two main reasons:

- · to identify and share exemplars of good practice more readily
- to identify where SACREs may be struggling to fulfil their legal obligations and the reasons for this, so that these might be addressed more effectively.

An early summary of the Annual Report evaluation was shared at the conference and the full report will be coming to your SACREs and shared on our website shortly.

Submission of the next round of Annual Reports should be by the end of the calendar year but at the absolute latest **by 31st March 2023**.

SACRE Self-evaluation tool

The revised **SACRE Self-evaluation tool** will help you to evaluate the effectiveness of your SACRE, to agree your priorities and to negotiate a budget to enable you to work on those priorities in partnership with your LA.

Use it to decide your priorities, to link it to your costed Development Plan and to inform your Annual Report.

NASACRE's online Training Programme for 2022-23

We are delighted to announce that NASACRE is running another year of webinars to support SACREs in their practice. Subscribed member SACREs can get unlimited access for their entire SACRE membership to all and any webinar for £50 annually – incredible value for professional development. All SACREs may book individual sessions – prices can be found **here**.

1. 22nd September 2022, 7-8:30pm: So, you've joined your local SACRE...

This session will help new or inexperienced SACRE members to understand their role, how SACRE works, its statutory responsibilities and how members make their contribution to this work.

2. 13th October 2022, 7-8:30pm: Applying and gaining for Westhill/NASACRE award

This session will help SACREs to understand the opportunities that applying for and gaining an award can offer a SACRE.

3. 17th November 2022, 7-8pm: SACREs - a way forward..?

Special guest: Rt Hon Charles Clarke

This session will continue the conversation we want to have with our membership around the government's White Paper on education, considering possible ways forward for SACREs.

4. 6th December 2022, 7-8pm: How to effectively use pupil and teacher voice in your SACRE?

This session will help SACREs to consider how using the voices of pupils and teachers within SACREs can enhance effective practice.

5. 19th January 2023, 7-8:30pm: Being an effective Chair part 2

This session will help SACRE Chairs to reflect on their present practice and share with other Chairs around the country some top tips for leading their SACRE's vision.

6. 21st February 2023, 4-5:30pm: Being an effective SACRE Clerk

This session will help SACRE Clerks to reflect on their present practice and share with other Clerks around the country some top tips for fulfilling the Clerk role within a SACRE.

7. 14th March 2023, 7-8pm: What's happening to Collective Worship beyond determinations?

In the light of the present legal position on Collective Worship, this session will share what a number of SACREs are doing to support Collective Worship practice in their schools.

Page 38

statutory responsibilities and how members make their contribution to this work.

The Inter Faith Network (IFN)

NASACRE is a member of the Inter Faith Network which is celebrating its 35th Anniversary this year. Their AGM took place remotely on **Tuesday 5 July** with the business meeting including voting through remote links. After the AGM had taken place, there was a session which included a series of short reflections. To start, IFN Trustee Professor Paul Weller reflected on the importance of the IFN's work to sustain the conditions for freedom of religion in the UK and its faith and public life dimension. It was timely as the International Ministerial Conference by the UK Government on Freedom of Religion or Belief was hosted while the AGM was happening.

Then, during a breakout session, members reflected on the importance of the IFN's work and its future in promoting and supporting inter-faith understanding and cooperation in the UK. As part of the reflection, it emerged that the IFN brought common interests together for various faiths and organisations and enabled voices to reach higher authority. NASACRE Chair Linda Rudge, in her reflections, congratulated the IFN on 35 years of positive and far-reaching contributions to inter faith dialogue. She mentioned how the two organisations had enjoyed mutually beneficial conversations, shared initiatives, and similar aims over many years of changing social and educational contexts.

Inter Faith Week 2022

Inter Faith Week takes place this year from Sunday 13th to Sunday 20th November. SACREs might start planning how to use the week as a platform to highlight and deepen inter faith and religion and belief dimensions of their work. The Inter Faith Network for the UK leads on this, making significant contribution to inter faith understanding, harmony and cooperation.

Each year thousands take part directly in Inter Faith Week activities, and millions encounter the week's positive messages through social media.

A useful Inter Faith week flyer can be downloaded here.

If you or your schools would like to discuss ideas with one of the IFN team, you are welcome to ring 020 7730 0410 or email interfaithweek@interfaith.org.uk.

Draft REC handbook

The REC's Religion and Worldviews project is continuing. A year ago, the REC was successful in bidding for a sizeable grant from the Templeton World Charitable Foundation to produce exemplar frameworks and resources for Religion and Worldviews curricula. This follows the Commission on RE (CoRE Report, 2018) and the work by academics to clarify the vision of what was meant by 'Worldviews'

The curriculum work is in three phases:

In Phase 1, RE Today won a contract to produce a draft handbook that would inform curriculum makers about what the Worldviews paradigm entails. Stephen Pett is leading the project and has published a draft curriculum resource, which contains guidance, explanation and includes a new iteration of the 'National Entitlement'. SACRES may wish to look at the resource and consider the ideas in upcoming Agreed Syllabus revisions. The REC is also looking for feedback on the published draft – it will change before final publication in 2024. You can read it here.

The REC is funding three consortia (groups of teachers/curriculum designers) to try out the Draft Curriculum guidance to form exemplar frameworks (Phase 2) and exemplar resources to fit them (Phase 3). Phases 2 and 3 are just starting.

The three consortia are:

- · led by Nikki McGee, involving schools from Inspiration Trust and other schools in East Anglia
- · led by Jen Jenkins involving Coventry and Warwickshire SACRE schools and the Diocese of Coventry
- led by Gillian Georgiou, involving teachers from across England.

Items for your next agenda

- Education White Paper to develop awareness of its relevance to SACRE and RE
- RE Report Card discuss the statements and consider how you and your schools can use it
- Feed back to your members from NASACRE Conference and workshops
- Draft REC handbook
- Begin to use the **SEF Tool** to produce your annual development plan
- Consider whether to apply for a NASACRE/Westhill award for 2023-24 (closing date 31 March 2023). NB. there is **a seminar** on the application process early in the next training programme schedule
- Check that subscriptions have been paid and that all **contact details** are up to date; book SACRE members onto **online training** where relevant.
- Look out for the publication of the 2021 census data and ask your LA to consider whether your SACRE is fully representative of your local faith communities.



Follow us on Twitter



Copyright © 2022 NASACRE, All rights reserved.

<u>unsubscribe from this list</u> <u>update subscription preferences</u>



DRAFT Northumberland SACRE Action Plan: September 2022 - August 2023

	Objective	Action	Responsible	Cost	Success criteria/outcomes	Date achieved
1	Meetings should be held in a space that is more conducive to conversation between members	Book the new committee room, with boardroom style layout, for future meetings	Clerk	nil		
2	Every SACRE meeting should include a time for discussion between members. It would be planned, led and would model good practice in discussion.	Add "Discussion: xxx" to future agendas	Clerk	nil		
Page	Teachers from schools where there is good practice in RE should be invited to present their	Add "Good Practice in RE: xxx school" to the spring term agenda	Clerk	nil		
e 41	work at one meeting each year	Identify and invite appropriate schools	RE Consultant	nil		
4	All meetings should have a key agenda item [which could include points 2) and 3) above	Committee members to agree upon the key agenda item for each meeting	Committee	nil		
	SACRE should consider having hybrid meetings in	Explore whether Council policy will allow hybrid meetings	Clerk	nil		
5	an attempt to increase attendance and involvement by more members	Book an appropriate space for future meetings (bearing in mind objective 1)	Clerk	nil		
6	The Chair should serve for a four-year period of office	Explore whether Council policy will allow such a term	Clerk	nil		

7	A list of the CPD events held, their key topics, evaluation scores and attendance should be included in future annual reports, along with details of attendance at SACRE meetings by committee/ individual members	Register of such events created and kept up to date	Clerk	nil	
8	SACRE should meet its constitutional requirement to have a member to represent the NAHT to enable better communication with head teachers, and to consider inviting a lecturer from higher education to represent their organisation	Approach NAHT and appropriate higher education institution	Clerk	nil	
9	SACRE should support the roll-out of the new Agreed Syllabus and should consider ways in which this can be achieved, e.g., a CPD roadshow and/or webinars	Create and promote a programme of AS-linked CPD events	Consultant	££	
Page [⊆] 42	SACRE members, where appropriate, should support schools by visits to classrooms, accompanying teachers and pupils on visits to places of worship or other sacred spaces, and by offering Q and A Zoom sessions. A list of volunteers with their topics and special interests should be made available to teachers	Create and promote a list of volunteers and their topics	Consultant	££	
11	SACRE should urgently investigate how it can support schools in relation to the Lindisfarne Gospels exhibition in Newcastle	Promote linked events via the Northumberland Education website and SACRE newsletter	Lead Officer	nil	
12	SACRE should seek ways in which it can play a greater role in Holocaust Memorial Day	Ensure SACRE representation on the planning committee	Clerk SACRE member	nil	
13	SACRE should advise the Council on the need for support from school improvement services to gather data on how far schools meet their statutory duties, particularly with regard to the implementation of the new agreed syllabus	School visits in summer 2023 to contain the following question: "Will the new agreed syllabus be fully implemented from September 2023?"	Lead Officer	nil	





14	The Chair of SACRE and consultant/officer should have an annual meeting with the Director of Children's Services	Arrange and create agenda for the meeting	Clerk	nil	
15	Analysis of workforce data and examination results should be presented annually, along with	Agenda item added to the spring meeting	Clerk	nil	
	any evidence from Ofsted reports on Northumberland schools	Appropriate analysis to be undertaken	Lead Officer	nil	
16	SACRE should continue to pursue the question of its status in relation to the Local Authority through further discussion with NASACRE and other national bodies	Discussions to take place	SACRE Member	nil	





This page is intentionally left blank